
CITY OF NE\VMk~

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 A.L~D 2007





THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLAl~K



CITY OF NEWMAN, CALIFORNIA

Table of Contents

FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Auditor's Report
Management's Discussion And Analysis (unaudited)

Basic Financial Statements:
Government-wide Financial Statements:

Statement OfNet Assets
Statement Of Activities

Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
Reconciliation OfThe Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
To Statement OfNet Assets

Statement Of Revenues, Expenditures, And Changes In
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Reconciliation OfThe Statement Of Revenues, Expenditures,
And Changes In Fund Balances Of Governmental Funds To
The Statement OfActivities

Statement Of Revenues, Expenses, And Changes In Fund
Balances - Budget And Actual - General Fund

Statement Of Revenues, Expenses, And Changes In Fund
Balances - Budget And Actual - CDBG Fund

Statement Of Revenues, Expenses, And Changes In Fund
Balances - Budget And Actual- Redevelopment Fund

Statement Of Revenues, Expenses, And Changes In Fund
Balances - Budget And Actual- Stonn Drain Fund

Statement Of Revenues, Expenses, And Changes In Fllnd
Balances - Budget And Actual- Public Facility Improvement

Statement OfNet Assets - Proprietary Funds
Statement Of Revenues, Expenses, And Changes In Net

Assets - Proprietary Funds
Statement Of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds

Notes To The Basic Financial Statements
Combining And Individual Fund Statements And Schedules:
Definitions

Page

1-2
3-13

14
15-16

17-18

19

20-21

22

23...24

25

26

27

28
29

30
31-32
33-52

53-54



CITY OF NEWMAN CALIFORNIA

Table of Contents

Combining Balance Sheet - Non-major Governmental Funds
Combining Statement Of Revenues, Expenditures And Changes

In Fund Balances - Non-major Governmental Funds

OTHER REPORTS

Independent Auditor's Report On Compliance And On Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting Based On An Audit Of
General Purpose Financial Statements Perfonned In
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Report On Compliance And On Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting Based On An Audit Of General Purpose Financial
Statements Perfonned In Accordance With The California
Transportation Development Act

Page

55-57

58-60

61-62

63



1300 10th Street, Ste C
Modesto, Ca 95354

209-526-3091
209-526-2287 fax

cbcpas.com

' , .

Gerald L. Clendenin, CPA
Constance Hillas Bird, CPA
Michelle L. Edmiston, CPA
Cathy L. Gatewood, EA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

William J. Young, CPA
Robert C. Kehl

~~a~'~~~~mm~iJ
C~GfNewm1m

, ...

(i?iii«<~~lljel)Jhave audited the g~~",~~ fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the
,,;));j;I;);ffi)flj;)ilill);'~·llIBlml.·.sl~ness-type activities,_~liL~~j<ig.pd, and the aggregate remaining fund information ofthe City
i<i _llfil?~llewman, State of Ca~lf~~Et.~I~.fand for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, which

(:)')/~i!i!~!:iil!~I·~i~.lr,ectiveIY comprise th~l:iil~jl,lasi'~'financial statements as listed in the table ofcontents. These
(II::! &~~al purpose financitl~~~~~ts<are the responsibility ofthe City ofNewman's management.
;li!li:lillil:!i,i)ll'~!i'ilf1I...IiI,'t!responsibility is t~~~ples~_opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on

mmJ.···audit./>
./

.

~I~'i"~~~'i'~~~~~it~a~co;rt\ance with generally accepted auditing standards in the United
/ ~~~k~~al~sco;~~in~~m@~~~

ii ,,.··>··,'><,··/· .. ,>••••••·.'.·•••'••·.,.>··>········~~I~I'~~!!issll~'I:.i:Co~.olleJt';~Dera1 ofthe United States. Those standards require that we
.~ I.I~_:~~~~·••••._k~~~~~~~~~finm~~~~~

i> •••••••••>••••••i · il1l~~iljill0.£?ofmaterial misstatemel:ll~._.lIi~ii._~Jtdes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the

')lliljllli"l~~01111iIml/l~unts and disclosules inlll/ il.&mlitllitatements. An audit also includes assessing the
il!lj g.unting principles used and s.illi~.l!!i$lmates made bymanagement, as well as evaluating the

>mym-all general purpose financial Slallll1~mt1l'resentation. We believe that OUI audit provides a
/? iII(i}0~.i·.• ···.7~/~i...?onable basis for our opinion.>

i

.. i

i / ?m.~·.··.··••·0···.··..?·(ltf"'2/'U,1 opinion, the financial stal~~em.tireflrred to above plesent fairly, in all material respects,
lj tI~f~espective financial positioi1:~if!lth.e0governmental activities, the business-type activities,

~al~.0~l!.jREfUn~'an~~g~~le,'remaincing fund information of the City ofNewman, as of June
:0ms0m0_m0smm-I~~,~~~esinfinancia1po~tionandcashflowsoftls

PI~I~~_••BJltyp~~imltfj.lyearsthen ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepteo1.n/tneUnited States ofAmerica.

ornia Society of Certified Public Accountants

alifornia Board of Accountancy

...

.. . ..

... 1.

.

Memb and Calif

firm is licensed by the C
.



The Management's Discussion and Analysis and Schedule of Funding Progress on Pages 3
through 13 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain
limited procedures, which consisted principallyofinquiries ofmanagement regarding the methods
ofmeasurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did
no~ audit the information and express no opinion on it.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October
30,2008 on our consideration of the City ofNewman's internal control over financial reporting
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions oflaws, regulations, contracts and grants.
That report is an integral part ofan audit performed in.accordance with Governmental Auditing
Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our
audit.

OUf audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial
statements ofCity ofNewman, taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account
group financial statements and schedules listed in the table ofcontents are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe general­
purpose financial statements and, in· our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

Clendenin Bird &Company,

CLENDENIN BIRD & COMPANY, PC

Modesto, California
October 30, 2008
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City of Newman
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

The following discussion provides readers of the City of Newman's financial statements
a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City ofNewman for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Please read this document in conjunction with the
accompanying Basic Financial Statements.

The City's financial highlights are presented below:

FISCAL YEAR 2008 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Financial highlights of fiscal year 2008 include the following:

Entity-wide:
• The City's total net assets were $30,420,502 as of June 30, 2008. Of this total,

$21,260,868 were Governmental assets and $9,159,634 were Business-type
assets.

• Entity-wide Governmental revenues include program revenues of $2,740,674 and
general revenues and transfers of $4,208,874 for a total of $6,949,548.

• Elltity-wide Governmental expenses were $5,576,090.
• Entity-wide Business-type program revenues and interest revenue were

$2,804,051 while Business-type expenses and transfers were $2,599,305

Fund Level:
• Governmental Fund balances decreased $462,090 in fiscal year 2008
• Governmental Fund revenues decreased $795,181 in fiscal year 2008.
• Governmental Fund expenditures increased $1,125,228 in fiscal year 2008.

General Fund:
• General Fund revenues of $3,971,870 represented a decrease of $291,885 under

the prior year.
• General Fund expenditures of $3,836,945 were $158,729 greater than the prior

year.
• General Fund balance of $3,108,726 as of June 30, 2008, is up from the fiscal

year 2007's fund balance 0[$2,950,909.

OVERVIE\V OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

This Annual Financial Report is divided into two parts:
1) Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A);
2) The Basic Financial Statements, which include the Entity-wide and the Fund

Financial Statements, along with the Notes to these financial statementsc
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City of Newman
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

The Basic Financial Statements

The Basic Financial Statements comprise the Entity-wide Financial Statements and the
Fund Financial Statements; these two sets of financial statements provide two different
views of the City's financial activities and financial position.

The Entity-wide Financial Statements provide a longer-term view of the City's activities
as a whole, and comprise the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.
The Statement of Net Assets provides information about the financial position of the City
as a whole, including all of its capital assets and long-term liabilities on the full accrual
basis, .similar to that'used by corporations.

The Statement of Activities provides information about all of the City's revenues and all
of its expenses, also on the full accrual basis, with the emphasis on measuring net
revenues or expenses of each of the City's programs. The Statement of Activities
explains.in detail the.change in Net Assets for the year.

All of the City's activities are grouped into Government Activities and Business-type
Activiti~s, as explained 'below. The amQunts in the Statement of Net Assets and the,
Statement of Activities are .s~arate.d into Governmental'Activities and Business-type
Activities in order to provide.a~llmmary of these two activities for the City as a whole.

The Fund FinancialStatem~ntsreport¢'eCity's operations in more detail than the Entity-'
wide statements and ~focusprimarilyon the short~tennactivities of the City's General
Fund and other Major Funds. The .FundFin~cial Statements ,.measure only current
revenues and exp.enditures and fu~d balances; they exclude capital assets, long-term debt
and other long-term amounts.

Major Funds account ,for the major financial activities of the City and are presented
individually, while the activities o.f Non-major Funds are presented in summary, with
subordinate schedules presenting the detail for each of these other funds. Major Funds are
explained below..

The Entity-wide Financial Statements

Entity-wide financial statements are prepared on the accrual .basis, which means they
measure the flow of all econ()mic re~ources of the City as a whole.

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities present information about
the following:

• Governmental Activities ~ .AII of the City's basic services are considered to be
governmental activities. These services are supported by general City revenues such
as taxes, and by specific program revenues such as user fees and charges.
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City of Newman
MANAGEMENT'S ·DISCUSSION·AND ANALYSIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2008

The City's governmental activities also include the activities of another separate legal
entity, the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Newman. The City ,is financially
accountable for this entity. Please refer to the separately issued financial statements.

• Business-type Activities - The City'S enterprise activities of water and wastewater
are reported in this area. Unlike governmental services, these services are supported
by charges paid by users based on the amount of the service they use.

Fund Financial Statements

The Fund Financial Statements provide 'detailed ,'information about each of the City's
most significant funds, called Major Funds 0 The concept of Major Funds, and the
determination of which are Major Funds, was established by Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement34'and replaces the ,concept of combining like funds
and presenting them in total. Instead, each Major ,Fund is presented individually, with all
Non-major Funds summarized and presented only in a single column. Subordinate
schedules present the detail. of these Non-major ,Funds..Major Funds present the major
activities of the City for the' year, and may change from year to yeatasa result of changes
in the pattern of the City's·activities. .

In the City's case, there are three Major Governmental ,Funds in addition to the General
Fund: The Debt Service Fund, Public Facility Improvement Fund and the 1997 Tax
Allocation Bonds Fund. Both of the City's Enterprise Funds are reported as Major Fundse

Fund Financial Statements include gove~ental and proprietary funds,. as discussed
below.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements are prepared on the modified accrual basis,
which means they measure ,Qnl,y current financi~l resO,urces anduse~~ Capital assets and
other long-liveda~sets, along with' long-tenn liabilities, are not presented in the
Governmental Fund Financial Statements.

Proprietary Funds Financia~ Statemenjs are prepared on the fullacc~al basis, as in the
past, and include all of their assets and liabilities, current'and long-tenno

Comparisons of Budget and Actual fjnancial infonnation are presented only for the
General Fund, as required by GASB Statement 34.

FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES OF THE' CITY ASA WHOLE

This analysis focuses, on the net assets and changes in net assets of the City as a whole.
Tables 1, 2 and 3 focus on the City's Governmental Statement of Net Assets and
Statement of Activities, while Tables 4 and 5 focus on the City's Business-type Statement
ofNet Assets and Statement of Activities.

5



City of Newman
rYIANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

. For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Governmental Activities

25,113,265

3,200,411
2,025,444
5,225,855

Governmental
Activities

2007
$ 11,669,161

5,298,903
8,145,201

Table 1
Governmental Net Assets at June 30, 2008

Governmental
Activities

2008
$ 11,511,695

4,960,535
9,853,334

26,325,564

3,047,999
2,016,697
5,064,696

Cash and investments
Other assets
Capital assets

Total assets

Long-term debt outstanding
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net ofdebt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net assets

6,805,335
10,981,730
3,473,803

$ 21 ,260,868

4,944,790
11,511,688
3,430,932.

$ 19,887,410

The City's governmental net assets amounted to $21,260,868 as of June 30,2008, an
increase of$1,373,458 over 2007. This increase is the Change in Net Assets reflected in
the Governmental Activities column of the Statement ofActivities shown in Table 2. The
City's net assets as of Iune 30, 2008 comprised the following:

• Cash and investments comprised $11,.223,900 in the city treasury and
$287,795 of restricted cash and investments. Substantially all of these
amounts were held in short term investments in government securities, as'
detailed in Note 1 to the financial statements.

• Receivables comprised $417,464 of current receivables and loans receivable
for $4,501,981.

• Capital assets of $9,853,334, net of depreciation charges, which includes all
the City's capital assets used in governmental activities.

• Current liabilities, including accounts payable, claims and other amounts due
currently, totaling $1,906,318.

• Accrued compensated absence liabilities payable to employees of $110,379,
as explained in Note 7 of the financial statements.
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City of Newman
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

• Long-term debt of $3,047,999 of which $2,888,969 is due in future years and
$159,030 is due currently.

• Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, of $6,805,335,
representing the City's investment in capital assets used in Governmental
Activities, net of amounts borrowed to finance that investment.

• Restricted net assets totaling $10,981,730, which may be used only to
construct specified capital projects, for debt service, or for community
development projects. The restrictions on these funds were placed there by
outsiders and cannot be changed by the City.

• Unrestricted net assets, the part of net assets that can be used to finance day-to
day operations without constraints established by debt covenants or other legal
requirements or restrictions. The City had $3,473,803 of unrestricted' net
assets as of June 30, 2008.
~-----------------------------

Sources of Revenues

Use of Money & Property
8%

Taxes
52%

Functional Expenses

Grants & Contributions
12%

Culture & Leisure
3%

Community Development
36%

Debt Services
3% General Government

8%

Public Works
16%
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34%



City of Newman
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

As the Sources of Revenue Chart above shows, $3,630,305, or 52%, of the City's fiscal
year 2008 governmental activities revenue came from taxes, while $81~,950, or 12%,
came from grants and contributions, $1,921,724, or 28%, came from charges for services,
and the remainder came from a variety of sources, as shown above.

The Functional Expenses Chart above includes. only current ye~. expenses; it does not
include capital outlays, which are now added, to the City's capital assets. As the' Chart
shows, general government is $458,524, or 8%, of total government expenses,
community development and planning is $1,987,627, or 36%, Public Safety is
$1,913,041, or 34%, Public Works is $908,093, or 16%, and Debt Service is $167,580 or
3%.

The Statement of 'Activities presents program revenues and, expenses and general
revenues in detail. All ofthese are elep:1ents 'in the Changes in G,overnmentalNet!\ssets
summarized below.

Table,2
Changes in·Governmental·Net 'Assets

Governmental
Activities

:2008'
,Expenses
General government
Public Safety
Public Works
Community Development
Culture and Leisure
Interest on long term debt

Total expenses

Revenues
Program Revenues:

Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions

Total program revenues
General revenues:
Taxes
Use of money and property
Other

Total general revenues
Total revenues

Change in net assets'

8

$

458,5'24
1,913,041

908,093'
1,987,627

141,225
. 167,580

5,576,090

, 11,921,724
818,950

2,740,674

3,630,305
535,112

43,457
4,208,874
6;949,548

1,373,458



City of Newman
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

As the Sources of Revenue 'Chart and Table 2 above show;$2,740,674, or 39%, of the
City's fiscal year '2008 governmental revenue, came from program revenues and
$4,208,874, or 61 %, came from general revenues such as taxes and interest and transfers.

Program revenues were composed of charges for services of $2,740,674, which include
permit revenues, fees and 'charges used to fund expenses incurred in providing services;
$818,950 of operating grants and contributions which include gas tax revenues and
housing and police grants.
General revenues are not-allocable to programs. General revenues are used to pay for the
net cost of governmental prqgrams.

Table 3 presents -the net (expense) or revenue of each of the City's govermnental
activities, including interest on long,-tenn debt. 'Net expense ,is defined as "total program
cost less the revenues generated by those specific activities.

Table 3
Governmental Activities

General government
Public Safety
Public Warks
Community Development
Culture and Leisure
Interest on Long-Term Debt

Totals

9

Net (Expense)
Revenue

From Services 2008
$ 928,566

(1,730,735)
(91,019)

(1,633,423)
(141,225)
(167,580)

$ 2,835,416



City of Newman
M.ANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Business-type Activities

The Statement ofNet Assets and Statement ofActivities present a summary of the City's
Business-type Activities that are composed of the City's enterprise funds.

Cash and investments
Other assets
Capital as~ets

Total assets

Long-term debt outstanding
Other liabilities

Table 4
Business-Type Net Assets

Business-Type
2008

$ 6,965,372
315,339

4,926,974

12,207,685
2,784,000

264,051

Business-Type
2007

$ 7,166,516
2,50,076

5,015;957

12,432,549
3,182,000 _,

295',661

Total liabilities
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

, Total net assets $

3,048,051

2,142,974
283,628

6,733,032
9,159,634

3,477;661 '

2,243,957
.285,640

6,425,291
$ 8,954,888

The net assets of business-type activities increased to $204,746 in fiscal year 2008.

Water Fund
Sewer Fund

Totals

Table 5
Changes in Business-Type Net Assets

Net (Expense)
Revenue

From Services
2008

$ (268,669)
$ 243,083
$ (25,586)

10

Net (Expense)
Revenue

From Services
200-7

$ 43,957
$ 566,357
$ 610,314'



City of Newman
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2008

Analyses of Major Funds

Governmental Funds

General Fund

General Fund revenues decreased by $291,885 this fiscaL year due primarily to the
decline in property taxes and building pennits. Property taxes decreased by $73,990 .due
to the drop in assessed valuations. Licenses and permits decreased by $124',205 as a result
of fewer building permits being issued. Charges for services were down $73,326,
because of a decrease in plan check fees and engineering fees. Interest income increased
$47,406 as the City's cash· investments maintained a .high rate of-retum'fOf the first hvo
quarters of the fiscal· year~

General Fund expenditures were $3,836,945, an increase of$158,727 from the prior year.
Expenditures were $381,232 less than budgeted, including savings in costs associated
with General Government, Public Works, and Community Development.

As of June 30,2008, the General Fund's unreserved fund balance totaled·$:t,.108,726. The
ullreserved portion of fund balance represents available liquid resources.

CDBGP"und
This fund is used to account for grants received to loan out low income citizens for first
time home purchases and/or housing rehabilitation projects. Also included in this fund
are grant funds for the ·Valley Manor Housing project. Those funds were loaned out and
are now reflected on our books as a long term loan receivable.

Public Fac@y Improvement Fund . .. .
This fund accounts for the improvement of public facilities funded by' developer fees. In
fiscal year 2008; the fund received $229,468 in developer fees. Developer fee revenlle
decreased $138,860 from the prior year due to a decrease in construction projects.

The fund's fiscal year end fund balance of$3,942,766 represents developer fees that have
not yet been expended on public facility projects and improvements.

Proprietary Funds

Sewer Fund

Net assets of the Sewer Fund increased $406,834 in fiscal year 2008 to a total of
$6,241,372. The City' paid off the outstanding 1978 Sewer Bond decreasing bonds
payable by $205,000. As of June 30, 2008, the fund's net assets were $6,241,372, of
which $801,053 was invested in capital assets, net of related debt, $283,628 is restricted
for Debt Service and $5,156,691 was unrestricted.
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City of Newman
M.ANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Water Fund

Revenues decreased $1,423,180 to a total of $806,636 in fiscal year 2008 due to the
continued slow down in construction. Expenses also increased by $222,776 to a total pf
$1,008,724. As a result the fund's net assets decreased by $202,088, to a new total of
$2,918,262.

CAPITAL ASSETS

GASB Statement 34. requires the City to record all its capital assets including
infrastructure, which was not recorded in prior years. Infrastructure includes roads,
bridges, signals and similar assets used by the entire population.

In fiscal year 2008, the City reported the cost of all its infrastructure assets and"computed
the amount of. ac.cumulated depreciation for these assets based. on their original
acquisition dates. At the end of fiscal year 2008 the cost of infrastructure and other
capital assets recorded on theCity'-s financial statements was as sho,wnin~Table:6· below:'

Table 6
Capital Assets at Year-end

Balance at
June 30,2008

Governmental Activities
Land'
Streets' and Roads
Buildings
Improvements
Equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Governmental activity capital assets, net

Business-type Activities .
Land
Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Business-type activity capital assets, net

$ 3,360,205
3,418,393
3.,601,445

.16,~~0 .
2,504,799

(3,047,840)
$ 9,8~3,332

$ 1,460,000
107,565

7,048,231
(3,688,823)

$ 4,926,973.

Bal~ceat

'June 3'0, '200'7

$ 2,130,37l
3,418,393
2,,946,721

~2,981
'2,255,148

(2,688,413)
$ 8,145,201

$ 1,460,000
107,565

6,940,337
(3,491,945)

$ 5,015,957

Detail on capital assets, current year additions and construction in progress can ·befound
in Note III.

12



City of Newman
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

The City depreciates all its capital assets over their estimated useful lives, as required by
GASB Statement 34. The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of a capital asset
over the years of its useful life so that an allocable portion of the cost of the asset is borne
by all users. Additional information on depreciable lives may be found in Note III to the
financial statements.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The City issued no new bonded debt in fiscal year 2008. The City made all scheduled
repayments of existing debt. The City paid off the 1978 Sewer Revenue Bond. Each of
the City's debt issues is discussed in detail in Note III to the financial statements. As of
June 30, 2008, the City's debt comprised:

Table 7
Outstanding Debt

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007

Governmental Activity Debt:
Certificates ofParticipation:

1997 Tax allocation and housing, 5.375%-6.200%, due 8/1/27
Other Long Tenn Obligations:
Note, 6.50%, no fixed payment schedule

Total Governmental Activity Debt

Business-type Activity Debt:
Certificates ofParticipation:

1991 Sewer treatment facility, 4.50%-6.74%, due 5/1/18

Revenue Bonds:
1978 Sewer Revenue Bonds, 5.00%, due in 2018
1982 Water Revenue Bonds,.Series B, 5.00%, due in 2022

Total Revenue Bonds
Total Business-type Activity Debt:

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

$ 2,860,000 $ 2,980,000

187,999 220,411
$ 3,047,999 $' 3,200,411

$ 2,150,000 $ 2,315,000

° 205~OOO

634,000 662,000
634,000 867,000

$ 2,784,000 $ 3,182,000

This Annual Financial Report is intended to provide citizens, taxpayers, and creditors
with a general overview of the City's finances. Questions about this Report should be
dire'cted to the City ofNewman, at 1162 Main Street, Newman, CA 95360.
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CITY OF NEWMAN
STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR JUNE 30, 2007

Primary Government
Governmental Proprietary Totals

Activities Activities 2008 2007
ASSETS

Cash And Investments 11,223,900 6,681,744 , 17,905~644 18,267,441
Cash With Fiscal Agent 287,795 283,628 571,423 583,136
Accounts Receivable 417,464 315,339 732~803 952,811
Loans Receivable 4,501,981 ° 4,501,9~1. 4,509,546
Prepaid Expenses 41,090 ° 41,09:0 71,722
Capital Assets (Net OfAccumulated

Depreciation):
Land 3,360,206 1,460,000 4,820,206, 3,590,371
Construction In Progress 16,330 ° 16,330, 82,981
Buildings And Improvements 2,366,314 3,234,703 5,601,017 1,860,120
E.quipment And Vehicles 1,118,364 45,022 1,163,386 1,125,484

Infrastructure 2,992,120 187,249 3,179,369 6,502,202

Total Assets 26,325,564 12,207,685 38,533,249 37,545,814

LIABILITIES
.Accounts Payable AIid Other
Current Liabilities 1,906,318 213,654 2,119,9'72 . 2,193,788
Compensated Absences 110,379 50,397 160,776 127,317
Long-Term Liabilities:
Due Within Qn,e Year . 159,030 206,000 365,030 35.8,412

Due In More Than One Year 2,888,969 2,578,000 5,466,9(59 "6,023,999

Total Liabilities 5,064,696 3,048,051 8,112,747 8,703,516

NET ASSETS
Invested In Capital Assets
Net Of Related Debt 6,805,335 2,142,974 8,948,309 7,188,747

Restricted For:
Capital Projects 4,236,719 ° 4,236,719 3,988,211
Community Developm~ntProjects 6,298,186 ° 6,298,186 7,076,104
Debt Service 446,825 283,628 730,453 733,013

. Unrestricted 3,473,803 6,733,032 10,206,835 9,856,223

Total Net Assets 21,260,868 9,159,634 30,420,502 28,842,298

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF NEWMAN
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR JUNE 30, 2001

Program Revenues

FunctionslPrograms Expenses

Fines, Fees And Operating
Charges Grants And

For Services Contributions

Capital
Grants And

,Contributions

Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:

General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Community Development
Culture And Leisure

Interest on Long-Term Debt
Total Governmental Activities

Btlsiness-Type Activities

Water Services
Sewer Services

Total Business-1'1ype Activities

Total Primary Government

458,524 1,341,263 45,827 0
1,913,041 75,603 106,703 0

908,093 496,678 5,000 315,396
1,987,627 8,180 346,024 0

141,225 ° 0 0
167,580 0 0 0

5,576,090 1,921,724 503,554 315,396

1,008,724 740,055 0 °1,590,5'81 1,833,664 0 0

2,599,305 2,573,719 0 0

8,175,395 4,495,443 503,554 315,396

General Revenues:
Taxes:

Property Tax
Sales Tax
Motor Vehicle Tax
Franchise Tax
Other Taxes

Investment Earnings
Intergovernmental
Transfers

Developer Con~ribution

·Total General' Revenues And Transfers

Change In 'Net·Assets

Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

SEE ACCOMPANYINO NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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° (o
0' (_---:..-_--

( ,2,835,416) (

Net (Expense) Revenue And
Changes In Net Assets
Primary Government

Governmental Proprietary Total
Activities Activities 2008 2007

928,566 0 928,566 1,193,789
( 1,730,735) 0 ( 1,730,735) (1,553,255)
( 91,019) 0 ( 91,019) 177,317
( 1,633,423) 0 ( 1,633,423) (1,183,406)
( 141,225) 0 ( 141,225) (117,421)
( 167,580) 0 ( 167,580) (163,925)

( 2,835,416) 0 ( 2,835,416) (1,646,901)

268,669) ( 268,669) 43,957
243,083 243,083 566,357--------
25,586) (, 2---:;5,_58-J6) 6_10---.,3_1_4

25,586) ( 2,861,002) (==1=='0=36:::::::,5=8:::::::::7)

1,668,004 0 1,668,004 1,836,712
519,376 0 519,376 515,857
953,042 0 953,042 886,554

, 121,486 0 121,486 121,967
368,397 0 368,397 412,909
535,112 273,789 808,901 995,461

° 0 ° °43,457 ( 43,457) 0 °0 0 ° 4,261,304

4,208,874 230,332 4,439,206 9,030,764

1,373,458 204,746 1,578,204 7,994,177
19,887,410 8,954,888 28,842,298 20,848,121

21,260,868 9,159,634 30,420,502 28,842,298

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
16



CITY OF NEWMAN
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
WITH COlVIPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR JUNE 30, 2007

Assets
Cash And Investments
Cash with Fiscal Agent
Accounts Receivable
Loans Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

Total Assets

Liabilities
Account~ Payable
Compensated Absences

Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

General

3,598,579
o

279,560
o

40,952

3,919,091

215,331
o

595,034

810,365

CDBG

617,182
o
o

3,919,558
o

4,536,740

2,985
o
o

2,985

Public Facility
Improvement

Fund

3,942·,628
o
o
o

138-----
3,942,766

0,
o
o
o

Fund Balances
Reserved

Unreserved

1~otal Fund Balances

Total Liabilities And Fund Balances

0 0 0
3,108,726 4,533,755 3,942,766

3,108,726 4,533,755 3,942,766

3,919,091 4,536,740 3,94~,766

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Redevelopment Storm
Capital Drain Other Total Governmental Funds

Fund Fund Funds 2008 2007

940,129 141,705 1,983,677 11,223,900· 11,386,565
287,795 0 ° 287,795 282,596

.4,901 0 133,003 417,464 717,635
542,423 0 40,000 4,501,981 4,509,546

0 ° ° 41,090 71,722

1,775,248 141,705 2,156,680 16,472,230 ·16,968,064

95,845 ° 116,014 430,175 429,271
0 ° ° 0 °0 770,563 110,546 1,476,143 1,510,791

95,845 770,563 226,560 1,906,318 1,940,062

° ° .0 0 0
l,679,403 ( 628,858) 1,930,120 14,565,912 15,028,002

1,679,403 ( 628,858) 1,930,120 14,565,912 15,028,002

1,775,248 141,705 2,156,680 16,472,230 16,968,064

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF NEWl\1AN
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Total fund balances - governmental funds

Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net assets is different because:

14,565,912

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of:

Land
Construction In Progress
Infrastruture net of $426,273 accumulated depreciation
Buildings and Improvements, net of$1,235,131 accumulated depreciation
Equipment and" Vehicles, net of$1,386,436 accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are
due and p"ayable in the current period and accordingly are not reported
as fund liabilities. All liabilities, both current and long-term, are reported
'in the statement of net assets.

Notes payable
Compensated absences

Total long-term liabilities

Total net assets,;. governmental activities

3,360,206
16,330

2,992,120
2,366,314 .
1,118,364 .

(3,047,999)
(110,379)

9,853,334

(3,158,378)

21,260,868

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITYOFNEWMAN
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR JUNE 30, 2007

Revenues
Property Tax
Sales Tax
Other Tax And Franchises
Licenses And Permits
Fines And Forfeitures
Investment Earnings
Intergovernmental
hnpact Fees

Service Charges And Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

General

741,497
519,376

1,111,140
175,247
33,150

224,627
45,827

o
1,121,006

3,971,870

CDBG

o
o
o
o
o

21,469
346,024

o
o

367,493

PllblicFacility
Improvement

Fund

o
o

°o
o

142,076
o

229,468
O.

3.71,544

Expenditures
Current
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Community Development
Culture And Leisure

Debt Service

Principal
Interest & Other Charges

.Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues

Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Operating Transfers In

Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change In Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance- Ending

363,565 0 0
1,798,208 0 0

643,256 0 3,375
900,571 55,460 0

131,345 ° 0

0 0 o·
0 0 0
0 0 0

3,836,945 55,460 3,375

134,925 312,033 368,169

222,892 ° 0
( 200,000) 0 0

22,892 ° 0

157,817 312,033 368,169
2,950,909 4,221,722 3,574,597

3,108,726 4,533,755 3,942,766

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Redevelopment
Agency
Fund

Storm
Drain
Fund

Other
Funds

Total Governmental Funds
2008 2007

926,507 ° ° 1,668,004 1,836,712

° 0 ° 519,376 515,857

° 0 331,785 1,442,925 1,421,430

° 0 11,860 187,107 312,267
0 0 0 33,150 59,629

63,964 6,002 76,974 535,112 620,065

° 0 427,099 818,950 985,039

° 6,482 17,444 253,394 509,039
8,180 2,327 316,560 1,448,073 1,441,234

998,651 14,811 1,181,722 6,906,091 7,701,272

0 ° 44,886 408,451 329,797

° ° 30,435 1,828,643 1,644,080

° 50,585 18,853 716,069 810,310
229,952 ° 753,597 1,939,580 1,598,714

° ° ° 131,345 107,541

120,000 ° 32,412 152,412 201,840
156,581 ° 10,999 167,580 163,925

1,274,783 ° 792,775 2,067,558 1,430,203

1,781,316 50,585 1,683,957 7,411,638 6,286,410

( 782,665) ( 35,774) ( 502,235) ( 505,547) 1,414,862

0 ° 487,111 710,002 181,714
( 200,000) 0 ( 266,546) ( 666,546) (180,306)

( 200,000) ° 220,565 43,457 1,409

( 982,665) ( 35,774) ( 281,670) ( 462,090) 1,416,271
2,662,068 (593,084) 2,211,790 15,028,002 13,611,731

1,679,403 ( 628,858) 1,930,120 14,565,912 15,028,002

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF NEWMAN
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

The changes in net assets reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This

is the amount by which capital outlays ($2,067,558) exceeded
depreciation ($359,427) in the current period

Repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. These transactions do not
have any affect on net assets.

The recording of accrued compensated absences does not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, is not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds. The liability is included in the
statement of activities.

Changes in net assetsofgovemmental activities

( 462,090)

1,708,131

152,412

(24,997)

1,373,456

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF NEWMAN
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESINFUNDBALANCES-BUDGETANDACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR JUNE 30, 2007

2008
Variance

With Final
Bud2et

Budgeted Amounts Over 2007
Original Final Actual (Under)=- Actual

General Government
City Council 194,069 259,634 246,687 ( 12,947) 50,960
City Manager 150,631 157,131 158,264 1,133 97,724
City Clerk 36,716 36,716 37,191 475 39,755

Finance And Treasurer 136,199 136,199 121,423 ( 14,776) 128,909--
Total General Government 517,615 589,680 563,565 ( 26,115) 317,348

Public Safety
Police 1,869,750 1,837,096 1,704,330 ( 132,766) 1,560,057
Fire 105,323 117,753 93,878 ( 23,871) _ .79,.9Q.5
Total Public Safety 1,975,073 1,954,849 1,798,208 ( 156,641) 1,639,962

Public Warks
Government Buildings 80,027 80,027 80,111 84 56,465
Government Auxiliary 184,300 184,300 101,622 ( 82,678) 151,192
Street Maintenance 268,693 268,693 304,639 35,946 261,803

Parks 178,244 178,244 156,884 ( 21,360) 164,213

Total Public Works 711,264 711,264 643,256 ( 68,008) 633,673

Community Development
Planning 140,198 140,198 112,960 ( 27,238) 107,964
Building Regulation 260,442 260,442 177,390 ( 83,052) 265,830
Refuse Disposal 592,200 592,200 585,170 ( 7,030) 592,034

Corporation Yard 4,300 4,300 3,386 ( 914) 4,169

Engineering 25,000 25,000 21,665 ( 3,335) 2,747

Total Community Development 1,022,140 1,022,140 900,571 ( 121,569) 972,744

Recreation And Leisure
Recreation 140,242 140,242 131,345 ( 8,8m 114,489

Total Culture And Leisure 140,242 140,242 131,345 ( 8,897) 114,489

Total General Fund 4,366,334 4,418,175 4,036,945 ( 381,230) 3,678,216

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF NEWMAN
CDBG SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES ~~D
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2008
WITH CO~IPARATIVEACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR JUNE 30, 2007

2008

Variance
With Final

Budget
Budgeted Amounts Over 2007
Original Final Actual (Under) Actual

REVENUES
Interest Income 27,600 27,600 21,469 ( 6,131) 31,367

Intergovernmental 79,000 79,000 346,024 267,024 264,855

Total Revenues 106,600 106,600 367,493 260,893 296,222

EXPENDITURES
Supplies And Services 99,400 99,400 55,460 ( 43,940) 152,621

Capital Outlay 0 0 0 ° 0

Total Expenditures 99,400 99,400 55,460 ( 43,940) 152,621

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues

Over Expenditures 7,200 7,200 312,033 304,833 143,601

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out ° 0 0 0 0

Total Other Financing Sources And (Uses) 0 0 0 0 °
Net Change In Fund Balance 7,200 7,200 312,033 304,833 143,601

Fund Balance - Beginning 4,221,722 4,221,722 4,221,722 0 4,078,121

Fund Balance - Ending 4,228,922 4,228,922 4,533,755 304,833 4,221,722

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF NEWMAN
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR JUNE 30,2007

2008
Variance

With Final
Budget

Budgeted Amounts Over 2007
Original Final Actual (Under) Actual

REVENUES
Interest Income 69,709 69,709 63,964 ( 5,745) 94,725

Property Taxes 913,000 866,989 926,507 59,518 1,021,225

Intergovernmental 0 ° ° ° 10,010

Miscellaneous Revenues 32,677 32,677 8,180 ( 24,497) 126,947

Total Revenues 1,015,386 969,375 998,651 29,276 1,252,907

EXPENDITURES
Salaries And Benefits 95,567 95,567 93,609 ( 1,958) 76,005
Supplies And Services 143,698 213,898 136,343 ( 77,555) 173,723

Capital Outlay 75,000 1,283,000 1,274,783 ( 8,217) 10,000

Debt Service
Principal 120,000 120,000 120,000 0 201,840

Interest & Other Charges 156,581 156,581 156,581 0 163,925

Total Expenditures 590,846 1,869,046 1,781,316 ( 87,730) 625,493

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues

Over Expenditures 424,540 ( 899,671) ( 782,665) 117,006 627,414

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers In ° ° ° ° °Transfers Out ( 200,000) ( 200,000) ( 200,000) 0 °Total Other Financing Sources And (Uses) ( 200,000) ( 200,000) ( 200,000) ° °
Net Change In Fund Balance 224,540 ( 1,099,671) ( 982,665) 117,006 627,414

Fund Balance - Beginning 2,662,068 2,662,068 2,662,068 ° 2,034,654

Fund Balance - Ending 2,886,608 1,562,397 1,679,403 117,006 2,662,068

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF NEWlVIAN
STORl\1 DRAIN CAPTIAL PROJECTS FUND
STATElVIENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE .YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
WITH COlVIPAR.k\.TIVE ACTUAL AlVIOUNTS FOR JUNE 30, 2007

2008
Variance

With Final
Budget

Budgeted Amounts Over 2007
Original Final Actual (Under) Actual

REVENUES
.Interest Income 8,700 8,700 6,002 ( 2,698) 9,928

Impact Fees 167,000 83,500 6,482 ( 77,018) 33,089

Service Charges And Miscellaneous 0 0 2,327 2,327 4,443

Total Revenues 175,700 92,200 14,811 ( 77,389) 47,460

EXPENDITURES
Supplies And Services 100,000 100,000 50,585 ( 49,415) 18,900

Capital Outlay ° ° 0 ° 777,653

Total Expenditures 100,000 100,000 50,585 ( 49,415) 796,553

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues

Over Expenditures 75,700 ( 7,800) ( 35,774) ( 27,974) ( 749,093)

OraER' FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers In ° 0 ° ° 0

Transfers Out ° ° 0 ° 0

Total Other Financing Sources And (Uses) ° 0 0 ° 0

Net Change In Fund Balance 75,700 ( 7,800) ( 35,774) ( 27,974) (- 749,093)

Fund Balance - Beginning ( 593,084) ( 593,084) ( 593,084) ° 156,009

Fund Balance - Ending ( 517,384) ( 600,884) ( 628,858) °( 593,084)

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF NEWMAN
PUBLIC FACILITY IMPROVEMENT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
STATElVlENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR JUNE 30, 2007

2008
Variance
With Final

Budget
Budgeted Amounts Over 2007
Original Final Actual (Under) Actual

REVENUES
Interest Income 150,000 150,000 142,076 ( 7,924) 187,864

Impact,Fees 956,300 487,150 229,468 ( 257,682) 368,328

Total Revenues 1,106,300 637,150 371,544 ( 265,6Q(j) 556,192

EXPENDITURES
Salaries And Benefits ° ° 0 0 0
Supplies And Services 50,000 50,000 3,375 ( 46,625) 136,847

Capital.Outlay ° ° 0 ·0 0

Total Expenditures 50,000 50,000 3,375 ( 46,625) 136,847

Ex,cess (Deficiency) Of Revenues

Over Expenditures 1,056,300 587,150 368,169 ( 218,981) ---i!.9,345

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers In ° 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out 0 0 0 ,0 0

rrotal Other Financing Sources And (Uses) 0 0 0 0 0

Net Change In Fund Balance 1,056,300 587,150 368,169 ( 218,981) 419,345

Fund Balance - Beginning 3,574,597 3,574,597 3,574,597 0 3,155,252

Fund Balance - Ending 4,630,897 4,161,747 3,942,766 ( 218,981) 3,574,597

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF NEWMAN
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

FOR THE ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
,WITH CO~IPARATIVEACTUAL Al\10UNTS FOR JUNE 30, 2007

Busines-s-Type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water Totals
Fund Fund 2008 '2007

Assets
Cash And Investments 5,023,854 ' 1,657,890 6,681,744 6,880,876

Cash With Fiscal Agent 283,628 ° 283,628 2·85,640
Accounts Receivable 214,108 101,231 315,339 250,076

Fixe9 Assets 5,882,388 2,733,409 8,615,797 '8,507,902

Acc;umulated Depreciation ( 2,931,335) ( 757,488) ( :3,688,823) (3~491 ,945)

OueFrornOther Funds 0 ° "0 0

Total Assets " 8,472,643 3,735;042 12,207,685 12;432,549

Liabilities
Acco~unts Payable 49;661 34;047 83,708 131,781
"Customer Deposits 0 28,956 28,956 '20',955

Compensated Absences 31,610 18,787 50,39:'7 -:41,935

Other Liabilities ° 100,990 100,990 100,990

Loat1'Payable 2,150,000 ° 2,150,000 2,315,000

Bond Payable 0' '634,000 634,000 "867,000

Total'Liabilities 2,231,271 816;780 ,3,048,051 3,477,661

Net Assets
Invested In Capital Assets,

Net Of Related Debt 801,053 1,341,921 2,142,974 2,243,957

Restricted For Debt Service 283,628 0 283,628 ' '285,640

Unrestricted, 5,156,691 1,576,341 '9,733,032 6,425,291

Total Net Assets 6241 372 2,918,262 9,159,634 8,954,888, , , ,

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF NEWMAN
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEl\'IENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL Al\'IOUNTS FOR JUNE 30, 2007

Business-Type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water Totals
Fund Fund 2008 2007

Operating' Revenues
Service Charges 1,472,032 685,493 2,157,525 2,125,327

Miscellaneous Revenues 65,386 349 65,735 116,803

Total Operating Revenues 1,537,418 685,842 2,223,260 . 2,242,130

Operating Expenses
Employee 'Services 436,012 342,238 778,250 683,,444
Supplies And Services 911,549 561,631 1,473,180 1,204,719

Depreciation 124,423 72,455 196,878 '198,529

.Total Operating Expenses 1,471,984 976,324 2,448,308 '2,086,692

Operating Income (Loss) 65,434 ( 290,482) ( 225,048) '155,438

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Earnings 207,208 66,581 273,789 3'75,396

Connection Fees 109,510 49,680 159,190 361,350
Development Fees 186,736 4,533 191,269 260,051
Development Contribution ° ° ° 1,454,319

Interest· Expense ( 118,597) ( 32,400) ( 150,997) (166,525)

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 384,857 88,394 473,251 2,284,591

Income Before Transfers 450,291 ( 202,088) 248,203 2,440,029

Operating Transfer In ° 0 ° °Operating Transfer Out ( 43,457) 0 ( 43,457) ( 1,409)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) ( 43,457) ° ( 43,457) ( 1,409)

Change In' Net Assets 406,834 ( 202,088) 204,746 2,438,620

Total' Net Assets - Beginning 5,834,538 3,120,350 8,954,888 6,516,268

Total Net Assets - Ending 6,241,372 2,918,262 9,159,634 8,954,888

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF NEWMAN
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATElVIENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR JUNE 30,2007

Business-Type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water Totals
Fund Fund 2008 2007

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Receipts From Customers And Users 1,502,205 663,793 2,165,998 2,172,222
Payments To Suppliers ( 972,454) ( 548,799) ( 1,521,252) (1,159,920)
Payments To Employees ( 429,249) ( 340,539) ( 769,788) (682,669)

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 100,502 ( 225,545) L 125,043) 329,633

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfer Ins ° 0 0 0

Transfer Out ( 43,457) 0 ( 43,457) (1,409)

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Capital
And Related Financing Activities ( 43,457) 0 ( 43,457) (1,409)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Connection Fees 109,510 49,680 159,190 361,350
Development Fees 186,736 4,533 191,269 260,051
Purchase Of Capital Assets ( 57,793) ( 50,102) ( 107,895) , (5-,1,,817)
Principal Paid On Capital Debt ( 370,000) ( 28,000) ( 398,000) (194,000)

Interest Paid On Capital Debt ( 118,597) ( 32,400) ( 150,997) ; (166,525)

Net Cash Provided (Dsed) By Capital
And Related Financing Activities ( 250,144) ( 56,289) ( 306,433) 209,059

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Interest Received 207,208 66,581 273,789 375,396

Net Cash Provided By Investing Activities 207,208 66,581 273,789 375,396

Net Increase In Cash And Cash Equivalents 14,109 ( 215,253) ( 201,144) 912,679

Cash And Equivalents, July 1 5,293,373 1,873,143- 7,166,516 6,253,837

Cash And Equivalents, June 30 5,307,482 1,657,890 6,965,372 7,166,516

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Reconciliation Of Operating Income To

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Sewer Water Totals

Activities Fund Fund 2008 2007

Operating Income 65,434 ( 290,482) ( 225,048) 155,438

Adjustments To Reconcile Operating Income
To Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating
Activities
Depreciation Expense 124,423 72,455 196,878 . 198,539

(Increase) Decrease In
Accounts Receivable ( 35,213) ( 30,050) ( 65,263) (75,154)

Increase (Decrease) In
Accounts Payable ( 60,905) 12,832 ( 48,073) 44,798
Compensated Absences 6,763 1,699 8,462 775

Customer Deposits 0 8,001 8,001 5,246

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities 100,502 ( 225,545) ( 125,043) 329,641

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF NEWMAN
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008 AND 2007

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES '.'

The basic fmancial statements of the City of Newman, California (City) have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica (GAAP).
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GAS~) is the accepted standard-setting body for
.establishing government':llaccounting and financial reporting principles~· In June 1999, the GASB
unanimously approved Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's
Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Governments. Certain ~fthe significant changes in
the Statement include the following: .

• A Management and Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section. providing an analysis <?f the
City's overall financial position: and results of operations...

• Finaneial stat~mentsprepared using the full accrual accounting for all ofthe City's activities,.
except.for infrastructure (roads, streets,.bridges, etc.)

• A change in the fund financial statements to focus on the major funds.

These and other changes are reflected in the accompanying financial statements. (including notes to
financial statements). The more significant of the City's accounting policies are described below:

A.}"inancial Reporting Entity

The accompanying basic financial statements present ~e'financial.activityoftheCity ofNewman
(primary government) and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to be
finan~ially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separ~te entities".: are, in
substance, part of the gove~ent.'s operations. Discretely presented component units represent
otherJegally separate organizations for which the primary"government is financially accountable or
for·which the nature and significance of their relationship to the primary goverIunent are such that
exclusion would cause the City's reporting entity to. be misleading.. or incomplete.. The ·City's
component urrits are blended; there are no discretely. presented .componenturiits in the Financial
Reporting Entity.

City of Newman

The City (primary government) 'was incorporated on June 10, 1908 under the general laws ofthe
State of California. The City provides the full range of municipal services as contemplated by
statute. Services provided include sewer, water, public safety (police,fire and civil defense),street
construction and maintenance, culture-recreation, public improvements,planning and zoning, and
general'administrative and support services. . . . ,. . '

The City operates under a Council-Manager form ofgovemment. The City Council consists offoUf
members elected at large for overlappi~g fo~r yeartenns. The Mayor is elected to· the City Council

33



CITY OF NEWMAN
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008 A1~ 2007

for a two year term. The City Council appoints a City Manager and City Attorney.
In addition to sitting as the governing board of the City, the City Council also acts as the Board of
Directors of one blended component unit: the Redevelopment Agency of the City ofNewman.

Blended Component Unit. The Redevelopment Agency serves all the citizens of the City of
Newman. The Redevelopment Agency is reported as a capital project fund.

Complete financial statements of the Redevelopment Agency may be obtained at the offices of the
City ofNewman.

B. Government-wide and fund rmancial statements.

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
changes in net assets) report infonnation on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which nonnally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a,
significant extent on fees and charges for support.

, The statement ofactivities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses ofa given function
or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program. revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded fonn the government-wide financial. Major individual
governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

c. Measurement Focus, B_;lSis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis ofaccounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing ofrelated cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis ofaccounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities ofthe current period.
For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of
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the end ofthe current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred,
as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes and taxpayer-assessed tax revenues (e.g., franchise taxes, sales taxes, motor vehicle
fees, etc.) net ofestimated refunds and uncollectible amourits, and interest associated with the curr~~t

fiscal period are all considered susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues ofthe
current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered measurable and available only when
cash is received by the City. The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, exc·ept those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

The CDBG Fund - To account for federal grants and..9ther monies received.and disbursed
under the Housing and Community Development Act, to assist low and moderate income
groups in obtaining loans to purchase their first home and rehabilitate or revitalize their
homes.

The Public Facility Improvement Fund- To account for development impact fees collected.
These fees are used for infr-astructure and capital expenditure resulting from ··new
developments.

Storm Drain- To acc()unt for imp~9t fees charged to development to pay for facilities.
impacted by the developme~tproject.

Redevelopment AgencylHousing- Redevelop~entAgency accounts for the collection of
property tax revenues used for the administration of the agency and development within
the designated redevelopment area. Redevelopment Housing accounts for 20% of the
property tax reyenues collected for theRedevelop~ent Agency, these fu~ds are restricted
for low and moderate income housing p~ojectswithin the designated redevelopment area.

The city reports the following major proprietary funds.

The Water Fund accounts for·the activities of the City's water service.

The Sewer Fund accounts for the activities of the City'·s sewer service.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 19·89,
generally are followed in the government-wide financial statements to the extent that those starldar~s

do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the GASB. As a general rule, the effect ofinterfl,lnd
activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers and applicants, for goods,
services or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions and 3) capital grants ap.d,
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contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues, and expenses generally result trom providing goods and services and producing- and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The prin~iple

operating revenues of the enterprise and internal service funds are'charges'forsales and services.
, 'Operating expenses for enterprise funds include salaries and employee benefits, maintenance-and

operation of systems and facilities, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital-assets. All
- revenues and expenses not .meeting this definition .are· teported as nonoperating revenues and
expen~es.

When both-restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it-istheCity's policy to use
restricted resources first,. then unrestricted resources; as- they-ate needed.

'l>.'Assets,Liabilities,Net Assets otEquity

1. Cash and Investments

In order to maximize the flexibility of its investment program and to aid ip. cash budgetin.g, the City
. p()olsthe cash ofall funds, exceptfor monies deposited with fiscal ag~ts inaccQrdancewithrelated

bond indentures. The cash and investments balance itt each fund represents that fund's equity share
of the City's ,cash and investment pool. As the City places no restrictions on the deposit or
withdrawal ofa particular fund's equity in the pool, the pool operates like a demand deposit account'
for the participating funds.

"Iriterestincome eamedon poole,dcash and investments is allocated quafEeilY.:'Interestincomeon
restricted cash and investments with fiscal agents is credited 'directly to the related fund.' '

In accordance with the State.ofCalifomia Government Code, the City adopts art investmentpolicy
annually that, among other things, authorizes types ofinvestments. Authorizedtnvestmeritsinc1ude:

• 'Securities of the u.s. governmentor its agencies
• Certificates ofDeposit (or time deposits) placed with commercial banks and/or savings

and loan associations
• Bankers Acceptances
• State Treasurer's Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
• Passbook savings account demand deposits

, '. Small Business Administration Loans
• Other products ~hich are totally guaranteed and insured by the U.S. government~

Investments for the City are reported' at fair value. LAIF operates in accordance with appropriate
state laws and regulations. The reported val:ue of the pool is ~he same.. as the f~ir value of the pool
shares.
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'For purposes of the statenient of cash flows, the city has defiriedcash and·cash::equivalents to be
change and petty cash funds, equity in the City's cash and investment pool and restricted, non-pooled
investment with initial maturities of three mO'nthsor less.

2. Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative o flendinglborrowingoutstaridingatthe end ofthe
fiscal year are referred' to as either "interfu~d receivables/payables" (i.e.. 'the current portion of.

interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e. the non-current portion ofinterfund loans).

All other outstanding balances between funds. are ,reported· as. "due to/frolTI oth~r funds"~

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balanc~

reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for
appropriation and are notexpendable available financial resource~.

All trade and tax receivables ar~ shown net 9:f·~.allowance for uncollectible aCG()\.lP.tsand estimated

refunds due.

3'. Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied on the first day of March by the county assessor, and are payable to. the
county tax collector in two installments.

The first installment is due November' 1st, and is delinquent on December 10th, the second

installment is due February1st andis delinquent on April 1Oth·~ Taxes becqme alien on the property

on March 1st, and on the d~te oftransfer of title, ,and the· date ofp.ew~oJ;1structiQf.l.

,The minimum property value,which is taxed is $2,000; however, ta~ bills are prepared for propertie~

valued at less than $2,0.0'0 if there is·a spe.cial assessment to ':'becollected~Article 13A of the
California Constituti~n.states, "The maximum amount ofany ad valorem tax on real property shall
not exceed one percent {I %)ofthe full'cashvalue of 'such property. The one percent tax is to· be

collected by the counties and apportioned according to law to the districts vvithin the counties. n

The City has elected under state law (TEETER) to receive al~ ofthe annual property assessmentS' i~

three installments as follows:

December

April

June
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4. Prepaid Items

Certain payrrtents to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid'items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

5. Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are.
classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond
covenants.·

6. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads,
bridges, sidewalks, traffic lights and signals, street lights and similar items), are reported in the
applicable governmental columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are
defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 for property, plant and
equipment and·$25,000 for infrastructure. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estim~ted _
historical cost ifpurchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to- the
value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Depre~iation is recorded in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of the depreciable assets to
operations over their estimated service life using the straight-line method. Assets are depreciated as
follows:

Buildings
Improvements

'. Machinery arid Equipment
Streets and Roads
Curb, Gutter; Sidewalks, & Median Curbs
Storm Drains
Traffic Signals
Water and Sewer Lines

7.C.ompensated Absences

20-40 years
40 years

3-6 years
20 years
20 years
75 years
20 years
40 years

Itisthe City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave
benefits. All vacation and sick leave benefits are accrued as earned by employees. All vacation and
sick leave pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial statements. A liability for'.
vacation pay is reported in the governmental and proprietary funds.
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818 Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the statement of net assets.

Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of
the bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond'
premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the
tenn of the related debt

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discoul1ts~

as well as bond issuance costs, during the cup-ent period. The face amount ofdebt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other finanqing.,
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

90 Net Assets and Fund Equity

In the government-wide financial statements, net assets are reported in three categories: net as~et~

invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net assets and unrestricted net assets.
Restricted net assets represent net assets restricted by parties outside the City (such as credito~s,

grantors, contributors, laws and regulations ofother governments) and include unspent proceeds ,of
bonds issued to acquire or construct capital assets. The City's other restricted net assets >are
temporarily restricted (ultimately expendable assets). All other net assets are considered
unrestricted.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations offund balance for amounts
that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specif!~

purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subjec~to,

change0

10e Use of Estimates

The preparation offinancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principals
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts ca.nd,,'
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

II. STE\VARDSHIP, COlVIPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

The City Council is required to adopt an annual budget resolution by July 1ofeach fiscal year for the
general fund, and special revenue, capital projects, debt service, and enterprise funds. These budgets
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are adopted and presented for reporting purposes on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department. The legal level ofbudgetary
control (i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the department
level. The council made several supplemental budgetary appropriations throughout the year.

B•. Deficit Fund Equity:

For the year ended June 30, 2008, the following fund has a deficit fund balance:

Stonn -Drain Fund $62.8,8-58

Stonn Drain Fund will be reimbursed by future assessments and fees collected from developers
within the development district.

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Cash And Investments

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2008 are classified in the accompanying financial statements
as follows:

:"Statement ofnet assets:
Cash and investments
Cash and investments held by bond trustee
Total cash and investments

. ":

Ca~h and investments as of June 30, 2008 consist ofthe'followi~g:
Cash on hand
Deposits with financial institutions
Investments in LAIF
Total cash and investments

Investments Authorized by the City's Investment Policy

17,905,644
571,423

18,477,O~7,

,1,000
3,490,8,77

, 14,985,I-90
18,477,067

The City's investment policy authorizes investment in the local government investment pool
administered by the State of California (LAIF). The City's investment policy also authorizes cash
to be invested in Certificates of Deposits, Bankers Acceptances, and Passbook Savings Demand
Deposits. The City's investment policy does not contain any specific provisions intended to limit
the City's exposure to interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.
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Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value, of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the,greaterthe
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. As of year end, the weighted
average maturity of the investments contained in the LAIF investment pool is approximately 5.7
months.

State investment pool
Total

'Disclosures. Relating to.Credit Risk

14,985,190
14,985,190

MaturityI)a~~

5.7 months average maturity

'Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of"an investment-will not ,fulfill its- obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is 'measured by the assignment of a rating by;a· n,~tionally
recognized statistical rating organization. LAIF does not have a rating provided by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy ofthe City's contains no limitations on the am,oup.t thatCan,be invested in any

one issuer beyond. that stipulated by the Califorrria Government Code.

Cu'stodial Credit Risk _

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to
'recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outsid~ party~The,C.alifomia

. Government Code and theCity'sinvestmentpolicy do not contajnJ~g~l'_'Qr;P91icyrequirell1ents
·that would limit the exposure.to '.custodial creditriskfordeposits,otbep-ihan:Jhe'.following
provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided
collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the
governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal
at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the ,public agencies. Califomia l.aw also· allows
financial institutions to secure City deposits b,y pledging first trust deeclm,ortgage.notes having a
value of 150% of the secured public deposits.

$2,256,438 of the City's' deposits with financial·institutions ill exce~s .. offederal depository
insurance limits were held in uncollateralized accounts.
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The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the
value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The
California Government Code and the City's investment policy do not contain legal or policy
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. With respect
to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in marketable
securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government's indirect investment in
securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF).

Investment in State Investment Pool

The City's is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is
regulated by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of
California. The fair value of the City's investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying
financial statements at amounts based upon the City's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by
LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which
are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

Cash with Fiscal Agent

The City maintains cash and investments which are restricted under the terms of various debt
agreements. The money is included in the City's pooled cash and investment program.

Restricted cash and investments as of June 30, 2008 is $571,423 and consists of$283,628 in the
Sewer Fund and $287,795 in the Redevelopment Agency Fund.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The City deposits deferred compensation plan assets with the
California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS). Federal legislation requires that the
assets of such plans be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the plan participants and their
beneficiaries. PERS act as the trustees for the plan assets.and the City is considered to have
limited fiduciary responsibility for the plan assets. As such, the City does not report the deferred
compensation plan assets on its financial statements.
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B. Accounts Receivable

Receivables at June 30, 2008 for the City's individual major funds and nonmajor funds in the
aggregate, including applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows. All receivables
are expected to be collected within one year.

Non-Major

Govern-

General CDBG RDA mental Total

Activities:

Interest 0 0 0 0 0

Taxes 20,261 0 4,901 0 25,162

Utility Billing 66,371 0 0 0 66,371

Intergovermental 182,502 0 0 133,003 315,505
Other 10,426 ° ° ° 10,426

Total 279,560 ° 4,901 133,003 417,464

Water Sewer Total

Business-Type Activities:

Utility Billing 101,232 198,832 300,064
Other 0 15,275 15,275

Total 101,232 214,107 315,339

c. Loans Receivable

The City is the recipient of Community Development Block Grant and Home Program Funds.
The Funds are provided for housing and business loans to qualified recipients at various below
market interest rates ranging from 0 to 4%. The tenns of the loans range between fifteen and thirty
eight years. All loans are secured by deeds of trust. The amount outstanding as ofJune 30, 2008 is
$3,959,558. Additional Loans Receivable of the Redevelopment Agency are as follows:

The Agency had the following loans receivables as of June 30,2008:

Westside Village
Bigelow #2
Caetano Pometta
Bigelow #3
Total
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c. Loans Receivable - continued

A five year loan was issued to Caetano PomettaReal Estate for $32,114 on October 5, 2004 at a
5,.00% interest rate, with monthly payment of $660.49. The loan receivable balance as of June 30,

2008 was $10,478.

A 40 year loan was issued to Westside Village Apartments L.P a California Limited Partnership for
$377,790 on June 3, 1999 at a 3.00% interest rate. The loan r~ceiyablebalance as of June 30, 2008
was $377,790.

Two loans were issued to Lloyd Bigelow. Loan.terms as follows:

Interest' Date' Monthly Balance
Amount Rate Issueq Payments 6/30/2008 Tenn

Bigelow #2 190,231 5.00% 1/1/2002 $1,504 141-,831 15 yrs
Bigelow #3 22,500 5.00% 7/1/2002 $434 12,324 5yrs

D. Transfers

Interfund transfers. for the year ended June 30, 200'8 consisted of the following amounts:

Fund
General Fund
Grants Fed
Redevelopment Agency
Gas Tax
Employee Home Loans
COPS. Grant
Planning
Capital Repair

Total

Tra~sfer

In
2'2'2,3,57

243,457
'0

°200,000

°'0
43,654

709,468

44
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Out

200,000
o

200,000
163,538

o
102,473
43,457

o
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E. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental-type Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 2,130,371 1,229,834 0 3,360,205

Construction In Progress 82,981 0 ( 66,651) 16,330

Total capital assets not
being depreciated 2,213,352" 1,229,834

:

( 66,651) 3,376,535

Capital assets being depreciated:

Infrastructure 3,418,393 0 0 3,418,393

Equipment And Vehicles 2,255,148 249,651 0 2,504,799

Building And Improvements 2,946,721 654,724 0 3,601,445
Total capital assets being

depreciated 8,620,262 904,375 0 9,524,637

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Infrastructure ( 305,493) ( 120,780) 0 ( 426,273)

Equipment And Vehicles " ( 1,247;109)( 13.9,327) 0 ( 1,386,436)

Building And Improvements ( 1,135,811) ( 99,320) 0 ( 1,235,131)

Total accumulated depreciation ( 2,688,413) ( 359,427) 0 ( 3,047,840)

Net capital assets .being depreciated 5,931,849 544,948 0 6,476,797

Total net capital assets -

Governmental-type activities 8;145,201 1,774,782 ( 66,651.) 9,853,332

. '. .

Depreciation was chargedto functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Government Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Community D'evelopment
Culture and Leisure
Total Depreciation expense - Government activities
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E. Capital Assets - continued

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Business-type Activities

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 1,460,000 ° ° 1,460,000
Total capital assets not

being depreciated 1,460,000 ° 0 1,460,000

Capital assets being depreciated:

Infrastructure 6,239,417 ° ° 6,239,417

Equipment And Vehicles 700,920 107,894 0 808,814

Building And Improvements 107,565 ° 0 107,565
Total capital assets being

depreciated 7,047,902 107,894 0 7,155,796

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Infrastructure ( 2,838,576) ( 154,601) 0 ( 2,993,177)

Equipment And Vehicles ( 583,474) ( 38,089) 0 ( 621,563)

Building And Improvements ( 69,895) ( 4,188) 0 ( 74,083)

Total accumulated depreciation ( 3,491,945) ( 196,878) 0 ( 3,688,823)

Net capital assets being depreciated 3,555,957 ( 88,984) 0 3,466,973

Total net capital assets -

Business-type activities 5,015,957 ( 88,984) 0 4,926,973

Business- Type Activities:

Water
Sewer
Total Depreciation expense - business-type activities
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CITY OF NEWMAN
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008 AND 2007

F. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:

Governmental-Type Activities:

Certificates of Participation

In the year ended June 30, 1997 the City issued tax allocation project and housing bonds. The bonds
payable were $2,860,000 as of June 30, 2008.

Year Ending
June 30

Principal Interest Total

2009 125,000 149,800 274,800
2010 115,000 143,923 258,923
2011 120,000 138,046 258,046
2012 125,000 131,798 256,798
2013 125,000 125,298 250,298

2014-2018 690,000 518,059 1,208,059
2019-2023 725,000 325,499 1,050,499
2024-2028 835,000 116,772 951,772

2,860,000 1,649,194 4,509,194

Fire Truck Purchase
The City purchased a Pierce F in September of2006 from Oshkosh Capital for $263,822. Repayment
will be made in yearly installments of$43,411 at a 5% rate of interest. The loan matures September
26,2012. The principal balance was $187,999 as of June 30,2008.
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F. Long-Term Debt-continued

Business-Type Activities:

The $1,050,000 of Water Revenue Bonds of 1982 are due in annual installments of $9,000 to
$59,000 through 2022 with interest of5%. This issue is being serviced, principal and interest by the
Water Fund. The principal amount unpaid at June 30,2098 is $634,000.

Year Ending
June 30

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

2014-2018
2019-2023 .

Total

Certificates of Participation

Principal

29,000
31,000
32,000
34,000
36,000

207,000
265,000

634,000

Interest

30,975 .
29,475
27,900
26,250
24,500
93,100
31,910

264,110

Total

59,975
60,475
59,900
60,250
60,500

300,100.·
296,910

898,110

The City issued certifications ofparticipation in May of 1991 :to assist in financing the acquisition,
construction, and improvement oftheir wastewater treatment facilities. The total amount ofthe issue
was $3,590,000 with interest rates ranging from 4...5% to 6.74~..

The City refunded these certificates in November 1999. The total amount of the is~ue was
$3,455,000 with interest rates ranging from -3.6% to 5.3%. The bonds payable as of June-30, 2008
were $2,150,000.

Year Ending
June 30

Principal Interest Total

2009 170,000 107,872 277,872
2010 180,000 100,052 280,052
2011 190,000 91,592 281,592
2012 195,000 82,330 277,330
2013 205,000 72,580 277,580

2014-2018 1,210,000 194,472 1,404,472

Total 2,150,000 648,898 2,798,898
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F. Long-Term Debt-continued

The following is a summary of.changes in the City's long-tenn debt and other long-term liabilities

during the year ended June 30, 2008:

Beginning Ending Due Within

Balance Additions Deductions Balance One Year

Governmental Activities:
Loans Payable 220,411' . 0 ( 32,412) 187,999 32,412

Certificate of Participaqtion 2,980,000 0 ( 120,000) 2,860,000 125,000
Compensated Absences 85,382 24,997 0 110,379 0

Long-term liabilities of

Governmental Activities: 3,285,793 24,997 ( 152,412) 3,158,378 157,412

Beginning. Ending Due Within
Balance Additions ' .Deductions "B~lance One Year

Business-Type Activities:
Bonds 867,000 ·0 ( "

233,000) 63,4,000 29,000

Certificate ofParticipaqtion 2,315,000.· . ° ( 165,000) ;", ... 2,1.$0,000 170,000
Compellsated Absences 41,935 8,462 "0' '50,397 0--_.-
Long-term liabilities of
Governmental Activities: 3,223,935 8,462 ( 398,000) 2,834,397 199,000
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G. Payables And Other Liabilities

Payables at June 30, 2008 for the City's individual major funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate

are as follows:

Redevelop- Non-major

Storm ment Govern-

General Drain CDBG Agency mental Total

Activities:

Vendors 215,331 ° 2,985 95,845 116,014 430,175
Developer Deposits 595,034 770,563 0 ° 110,546 1,476,143

Total 810,365 770,563 2,985 95,845 226,560 1,906,318

Water Sewer Total

Business-Type Activities:

Vendors 34,047 49,661 83,708
Customer Deposits 28,956 ° 28,956
Developer Deposits 100,990 0 100,990

Total 163,993 49,661 213,654

IV. OTHER INFORMATION

A. Risk Management

The City ofNewman participates with other public entities in a joint exercise ofpowers agreement,
which establishes the Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority (CSJVRMA). The
relationship between the City and CSJVRMA is such that CSJVRMA is not a component unit ofthe
City for financial reporting purposes.

The City is covered for the first $1,000,000 of each general liability claim and $250,000 of each
workers' compensation claim through the CSJVRMA. The City has the right to receive dividends or
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the obligation to pay assessments based on a fonnula which, among other expenses, charges the
City's account for liability losses under $10,000 and workers' compensation losses under $10,000.
The CSJVRMA participates in an excess pool which provides general liability coverage from
$1,000,000 to $10,000,000. The CSJVRMA participates in an excess pool that provides workers'
compensation coverage from $250,000 to $500,000 and purchases excess insurance above the
$500,000 to the statutory limit. The CSJVRMA is a consortium of fifty-four (54) cities in San
Joaquin Valley, California. It was established under the provisions ofCalifornia Government Code
Section 6500 etseq. The CSJVRMA is governed by a Board ofDirectors, which meets 3-4 times per
year, consisting ofone mep1ber appointed by each member city. The day-to-day business is handled
by a management group employed by the CSJVRMA.

The financial position and results of operations for the CSJVRMA, as of June 30, 2007, are
presented below:

Total Assets

Total Liabilities
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities & Retained Earnings

Total Revenues for Year
Total Expenses for Year

Net Income for Year

50,198,598

41,675,008
8,523,590

50,198,598

24,274,050
25,421,851

(1,147,801)

At the tennination ofthe joint powers agreement and after all claims have been settled, any excess
deficit will be divided among the cities in accordance with its governing documents.

Bs Commitments and Contingencies

The City ofNewman is a party in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not
presently detenninable, it is the opinion ofthe City's counsel that resolution ofthese matters will not
have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

C. Employee Retirement Systems and Plans

The City contributes to the California Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS), an agent
multiple-employer public employee defmed benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and
disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. PERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public
entities within the State ofCalifomia. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established
by state statute and city ordinance. Copies ofPERS' annual financial report may be obtained from
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their Executive Office - 400 P Street - Sacramento CA 95814.

Participants ,are required to contribute 7% (9% for public-safety employees) oftheir annual covered

salary. -The City makes the contributions required ofthe City employees on their behalfand for their
account. The contribution requirements ofplan members and the City are established and may be
amended by PERS. The City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current

. rate 'is '11.226% for non-safety employees, '28.932% ofpolice employees, ofannual covered payrolL

',-PERS _has determined that because of past funding and investment~amip.gs·,. current emp~oye!

contributions are not required for miscellaneous employees and public-safety employees ofthe city.

For· June 30, 2008, the City's annual pension cost was $337,6693'due to excess PERS funds
.detennined as'part ofthe June 30, 2007,actlr~alvaluation using the entry age,normal actuarial cost
method. The actuarial assumptions include (a) 7.75% investment rate ofreturn (net ofadministrative
expenses), (b) projected annual salary increases that vary by duration ofservice; and (c) 3.25% per

, 'yeai"'cost-of-living adjustments. Both (a) and (b) include an inflation component of 3%. The
actuarial value ofPERS assets were detennined using techniques that smooth the effects of short­
term volatility in the market value ofinvestments over a four-year period (smoothed market value).
PERS unfunded actuarial-accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected
payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2007, was five years for
prior service unfunded, and 15 years for remaining unfunded.

,THREE-YEAR TREND INFORMATION FOR PERS

Fiscal
Year

06/30106
,06/30107
06/30108

Annual Pension 'Cost
(APe)

$409,326
$308,611
$337,693
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Percentage 'of
APC Contributed

100%
100%
100%

·N~t Pension
O~ligati~p.,

o
o
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COMBINING FINANCIAL STATElVIENT.S

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Program Income Miscellaneous- To account for,miscellaneous·income.

Park Facility Fee- Toaccount'for developer fees related to parks.

State Grants- To account for various grants received from the State of California. Funds are
used for community development.

Safety Grants- To account for Federal grants. Historically most of the grants are police related
but could include other departments.

Gas Tax- To account for state gas tax revenues collected based on population. The revenues may
be expended for street and road repair, maintenance, design, construction·.andtraffic·signal
design and installation.

Local Transportation-To 'account for Local Transportation Funds': received from STANCOG a.s
a pass thru of gas and sales tax funds to be used for improvements to transportation related areass

Asset Forfeiture- To· account for money received by the Police Depanment.as a result of Asset
Forfeiture. The funds are used to augment the SLENET Task Force which is currently run by the
State Department ofJustice. .

E.mployee Home Loan Fund- To account for funds set asid~ for C;ity.ofNe\VlPan employees.
home loan program..' .

Business License Surcharge- To account for revenues generated by a portion of the business
licenses collected.

Lighting and Landscaping Distrlct- To account,forthemoneyteceived frolIl'residences in
certain districts who pay an asseSsment based on the benefit they receive.' These' funds are use4
to' cover the costs of street lighting and .landscape maintenance in their specific zones. .

Contingency Fund-To' account for funds reserved for emergency or contingent needs. These·
funds are only to be used at the direction of the City Council for emergencies or unplanned
needs.
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COlVIBINING FINA1~CIALSTATEMENTS

NON-~IAJORGOVER~IVIENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Capital Repair & Replacement- To account for internally derived depreciation expense used to
establish a capital reserve fund.

K-9 Fund- To account for donations made to the City for the purpose of the police K-9 Units.

COPS Grant Fund- To account for grant funds for police services.

Abandon Vehicle Fund- To account for money received by the Police Department for the
disposal of abandon vehicles.

54



CITY OF NEWMAN
COl\1BINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMffiNTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR JUNE 30, 2007

Special Revenue

Program Park
Income Facility State Safety Abandoned
Misc. Fee Grants Grants Vehicle
Fund Fund Fund Fund Program

Assets
Cash And Investments 1,542 342,122 3,386 109,143 3,734

Cash with Fiscal Agent 0 0 0 0 0
Accounts Receivable 0 0 0 725 1,(j48
Loans Receivable 0 0 0 0 O.

Due From Other Funds 0 0 0 0 0

Total Assets 1,542 342,122 3,386 109,868.. 5,382

Liabilities And Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts Payable 0 12,836 1,828 54,426 0
Compensated Absences 0 0 0 0 0
Other Liabilities 0 110,546 ° 0 °Due To Other Funds 0 0 0 0 ·0

Total Liabilities 0 123,382 1,828 54,426 0

Fund Balances
Reserved 0 0 0 0 0

Unreserved 1,542 218,740 1,558 55,442 5,382

Total Fund Balances 1,542 218,740 1,558 55,442 5,382

Total Liabilities

And Fund Balances 1,542 342,122 3,386 109,868 5,382
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Special Revenue

Gas
Tax

Fund

Employee
Home Loan

Fund
K-9

Fund

COPS
Grant
Fund

Asset
Forfeit
Fund·

County
Local CDBG

Transportation Construction
Fund Fund

0 161,184 31,427 0 959 414,980 47,464
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

45,453 0 0 0 0 58,916 26,261
0 40,000 0 0 0 0 0
·0 0 0 0 0 0 0

45,453 201,184 31,427 0 959 473,896 73,725

0 0 0 0 0 0 24,073
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 24,073

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
45,453 201,184 31,427 0 959 473,896 49,652

45,453 201,184 31,427 0 959 473,896 49,652

45,453 201,184 31,427 0 959 473,896 73,725
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CITY OF NEWMAN
COMBuaNGBALANCESHEET
NONMAJORGOVE~NTALFUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
MTH COl\1PARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR JUNE 30, 2007

Special Revenue

Total
Non-Major

Special
Revenue Funds

2008 2007

Capital
Repair

Contingency Replacement---------Fund Fund

Lighting
Landscape

District
Fund

Business
License

Surcharge
Fund

Assets
Cash And Investments
Cash with Fiscal Agent
Accounts Receivable
Loans Receivable
Due From Other Funds

Total Assets

7,025 ' 188,610 193,936 478,165 1,983,677 2,272,382
0 0 ° 0 0 °0 0 0 0 133,003 217,058
0 0 ° 0 40,000 0
0 0 0 0 0 °7,025 188,610 193,936 478,165 2,156,680 2,4S9,440

Liabilities And Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Compensated Absences
Other Liabilities
Due To Other Funds

Total Liabilities

232 16,971 0 5,648 116,014 167,104
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 ° 0 0 110,546 110,546
0 0 0 ° 0 0

232 16,971 ° 5,648 226,560 277,650

Fund Balances
Reserved
Unreserved

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities
And FUnd Balances

0 0 0 0 0
6,7'93 '171,639 193,936 472,517 ,1,.930,120 2,211,790
6,793 171,639 193,936 472,517 1,930,120 2,211,790

7,025 188,610 193,936 478,165 '2,156,680 2',489,440
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NONMAJORGOVERNMENTALFUNDS
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WITH COlVlPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR JUNE 30,2007

S,pecial Revenue

Program Park
Income Facility State Safety Abandoned
Misc. Fee Grants Grants Vehicle
Fund, Fund " Fund Fund Program

Revenues
Investment Earnings 58 19,061 211 0 28

Intergovernmental ° ° 5,000 0 6,703

Property Taxes ° 0 0 0 0

Other l'axes ° 0 0 0 0

Impact Fees 0 17,444 0 0 0

Licenses And Permits ° ° 0 0 0

Service Charges And Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0

Total Revenues 58 36,505 5~211 0 6,731

Expenditures
General Government 0 0 ,0 , 0 0

Public Safety 0 0 0 0 4,577

Public Works 0 0 4,753 0 0

Community Development 0 112,890 0 173,097 0

Culture And Leisure 0 0 0 0 0

Debt Service
; Principal 0 0 0 0 0

Interest & Other Charges 0 0 0 0 0

Capital Outlay 0 107,223 0 0 0

Total· Expenditures 0 220,113 4,753 '173,097 4,577

Excess(Deficiency) Of Revenues

Over Expenditures 58 ( 183,608) 458 ( 173,097) 2,154

Other Financing Sources (Uses) ,
.Operating Transfers In 0 0 0 243,457 0

Operating Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 ( 535)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 0 243,457 ( 535)

Net Change In Fund Balances 58 ( 183,608) 458 , 70,360 1,619

Fund Balance -Beginning 1,484 402,348 1,100 ( , 14,918) 3,763
"

Fund Balance - Ending 1,542 218,740 1,558 5'5,442 5,382
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WITH CO]\'IPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR JUNE 30, 2007

Special Revenue

County Business
Gas Employee COPS Asset Local County License
Tax Home Loan K-9 Grant Forfeit fransportatiolJ CDBG Surcharge

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

4,618 1,184 0 2,473 36 13,591 1,601 590
0 0 0 100,000 0 129,468 185,928 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

189,473 ° 0 0 0 0 0 °0 0 0 0 0 0 0 °° 0 0 0 0 0 0 11,860

° 0 75,603 0 0 150,423 0 0

194,091 1,184 75,603 102,473 36 293,482 187,529 12,450

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 24,602
0 0 25,858 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 14,100 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 298,293 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 ° 0 0 0 0

° 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 18,318 0 0 310,980 207,555 0

0 ° 44,176 0 0 325,080 505,848. 24,602

194,091 1,184 31,427 102,473 36 ( 31,598) ( 318,319) ( 12,152)

0 200,000 ° 0 0 0 0 °( 163,538) ° 0 ( 102,473) 0 0 ° 0

( 163,538) 200,000 0 ( 102,473) 0 0 0 °
30,553' 201,184 31,427 0 36 ( 31,598) ( 318,319) ( 12,152)

14,900 ° 0 0 923 505,494 367,971 18,945

45,453 201,184 31,427 0 959 473,896 49,652 6,793
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Special Revenue

Total
Lighting Capital Non-Major

Landscape Repair Special
District Contingency Replacement Revenue Funds
Fund Fund Fund 2008 2007

Revenues
Investment Earnings 6,330 7,296 19,897 76,974 118,960
Intergovernmental 0 0 0 427,099 566,227
Property Taxes 0 0 0 0 0
Other Taxes 142,312 0 0 331,785 363,600
Impact Fees 0 0 0 17,444 107,622
Licenses And Permits 0 0 0 11,860 12,815
Service Charges And Miscellaneous 0 ° 90,534 316,560 115,512

1'1otal Revenues 148,642 7,296 110,431 1,181,722 1,284,736

Expenditures
General Government 0 0 20,284 44,886 22,944
Public Safety 0 0 0 30,435 3,393
Public Works 0 0 0 18,853 4,560
Community Development 169,317 0 0 753,597 204,162
Culture And Leisure 0 0 0 0 0

Debt Service
Principal 0 0 32,412 32,412 0
Interest & Other Charges 0 0 10,999 10,999 0

Capital Outlay 0 0 148,699 792,775 661,621

Total E,xpenditures 169,317 0 212,394 1,683,957 896,680

Excess(Deficiency) OfRevenues

Over Expenditures ( 20,675) 7,296 ( 101,963) ( 502,23~ 388,056

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In 0 0 43,654 487,111 1,409

Operating Transfers Out ° 0 0 ( 266,546) .( 180,306)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 43,654 220,565 (. 178,897)

Net Change In Fund Balances ( 20,675) 7,296 ( 58,309) ( 281,670) 209,160

Fund Balance - Beginning 192,314 186,640 530,826 2,211,790 2,002,630

Fund Balance ~ Ending 171,639 193,936 472,517 1,930,120 2,211,790
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A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of one or more of the il1ternal control
components does not allow management or employees in the nonnal course of perfonning their
duties to prevent or detect misstatements om a. timely basis A significant deficiency is a control
deficiency, or combination ofcontrol defici~.~i~sthat adversely affects the entity's ability to initiate,
authorize, record, process, or report finali~ia;Idlta reliably in a accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the
entity's financial statements that is mo:!e than. inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by
the entities internal controls.
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A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement ofthe financial statements will
.not be prev~nted or detected.

Our consideration ofinternal control over financial reporting and internal control over compliance
was for the limited purpose described above and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in
internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal controls over financial reporting that we consider
to be material weaknesses as described above.

This report is intended for the infonnation of the audit committee, management and the Newman
City Council. However, this report is a matter ofpublic record and its distribution is not limited.

Clendenin Bird &Company}

CLENDENIN BIRD & CO~IPANY, PC

Modesto, California
October 30, 2008
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
BASED ON AN EXAMINATION OF GENERAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL

STATEMENT PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
CALIFORNIA TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT

To The City Council
City ofNewman
State of California

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements ofthe City ofNewman, State ofCalifornia
forthe yearended.June 30, 2008 and 2007, and have issued our report thereon dated October 30,
4QQ8.~.~u<1i!)\y(l$.rt1ade.inaqcordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards.for .fi.nancialandcompliance audits contained in the California Administrative Code
Section 6664 ofthe Transportation Development Act and the allocation instructions ofthe Stanislaus
Area Association ofGovernments, and accordingly included such tests ofthe accounting records and
such other auditing procedures as we· considered necessary in the circumstances.

The management of the City of Newman is responsible for the City's compliance with laws and
te~lations. In connection with our~1.lditJ;ef~edto above, we selected and tested transactions and
r~c~rds to determine the City's cor:n.l)li~qe~thlaws and regulations, noncompliance with which
could have a material effect on the general-purpose financial statements of the City:

In our opinion the City ofNewmal1 Transportation Development Act funds were accounted for in

coofonnance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations ofthe Transportation Development Act

and the allocation instructions ofthe Stanislaus Council of Governments.

Clen,deninBird ·..&··Company,

CLENDENINBIRD&··COMPANY, PC

Modesto, California
October 30, 2008
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